#### **BHARAT VIKAS PARISHAD**

#### **Bye Laws for Affiliate Members**

#### 1. Name:

The Name of the association shall, so long as it continues to be an Affiliate Member of the Parishad, be "Bharat Vikas Parishad, (distinctive name), [name of the place of working]. Upon ceasing to be an Affiliate Member of the Parishad, the Association shall not use the name of Bharat Vikas Parishad as prefix or suffix or in any other manner.

# 2. Objects of the Association:

- (i) Objects of the Parishad, shall also be the objects of the Association.
- (ii) In addition to the above objects, the Association may pursue all objects which are not inconsistent with the objects of Bharat Vikas Parishad and which promote National interests and Social and Cultural development of the Society.

# 3. Area of Operation:

The association shall operate within t	the geographical limits of
(Village/Town/City) (District),	

#### 4. Definitions:

In these byelaws the following words shall, unless the context requires otherwise, have the meanings assigned to them against them respectively:

- (i) "Association" shall mean the association of persons known as "Bharat Vikas Parishad, '\_\_\_\_\_', \_\_\_\_\_.
- (ii) "Parishad" shall mean Bharat Vikas Parishad, New Delhi, registered under the Societies Registration Act, 1860, registered vide Regn No......its registered office at Bharat Vikas Bhavan, BD Block, Behind Power House, Pitampura, Delhi-110034, or such other place as may be decided from time to time.
- (iii) "Prescribed" shall mean prescribed by the Sub-Rules of the Association.

# 5. Membership:

Membership of the Association shall be of the following categories:

## i **Primary Members**:

- (a) Any person who is capable of entering into a contract and who not being already a member of an association affiliated to the Parishad as an Affiliate Member, fulfils the prescribed qualifications, subscribes to the ideals, aims and objects of the Parishad and the Association and agrees to abide by the Rules and Regulations of the Parishad and byelaws of the Association, may be enrolled, on the recommendation of any two members of the Association, by the Executive Body of the Association.
- (b) A Primary Member shall have the right to attend the meetings of the General Body of the Association and to participate in the deliberations held at such meetings, to vote on resolutions brought before such meetings and to vote at and contest for any post in elections held in such meetings. He / She shall also have the right and the duty to participate in the programs, projects and activities of the Parishad and the Association.
- (c) A Primary Member shall be liable to pay such admission and periodical fees/subscriptions as are prescribed from time to time.

#### ii Associate Members:

- (a) The spouse of a Primary Member, if he/she is not a Primary Member, shall be enrolled as an Associate Member subject to his/her fulfilling eligibility criteria for Primary Membership. Such Associate Membership shall be coterminous with the membership of the concerned Primary Member.
- (b) At the request of the Primary Member his/her Associate Membership may, in the prescribed manner, be interchanged with the Primary Membership of his/her spouse.
- (c) An Associate Member shall have the right to participate in all programs, projects and activities of the Parishad and the Association but shall not be entitled to attend, participate or vote at the organizational meetings of the Association or contest election for any of the office in the Association.

(d) An Associate Member shall not be liable to pay any kind of fees or subscription to the Association. He/she may however, make voluntary contributions/donations to the Parishad and the Association if he/she so desires.

## iii Honorary Members:

- (a) The Executive Committee of the Association may confer Honorary Membership on distinguished persons residing within the area of its operation, who have been, are or are likely to be helpful to the Association in carrying out its programs, projects or activities.
- (b) An Honorary Member shall have a right to participate in all programs, projects and activities of the Association. However, an Honorary Member shall not be entitled to attend, participate or vote at the organizational meetings of the Association or to contest election for any of the posts in the Association.
- (c) An Honorary Member shall not be liable to pay any kind of fees/subscription to the Association. He/she may however, make voluntary contributions/donations to the Association if he/she so desires

## 6. Termination of Membership:

Membership shall terminate on the occurrence of any of the following events:

- (i) On the Member's demise;
- (ii) On the Member tendering resignation from membership by addressing a letter to the President of the Association;
- (iii) On removal from membership by the prescribed authority in the prescribed manner in the following events:
  - (a) On the Prescribed Authority finding, after an enquiry conducted in the prescribed manner, that the Member is suffering from such mental or physical incapacity that he is incapable of exercising his rights and discharging his duties as a Member of the Association.
  - (b) On the Member being found **by the Prescribed Authority** to have defaulted for a period of more than six months, in payment of subscription and/or

other dues payable to the Association, after conducting an enquiry **in the prescribed manner**.

- (c) On the Member being found **by the Prescribed Authority**, after affording him proper and adequate opportunity of hearing, to have been convicted of an offence involving moral turpitude by a Court of competent jurisdiction.
- (d) On the Member being found by the Prescribed Authority, after an enquiry conducted in the prescribed manner, to be guilty of misconduct, misbehaviour **or** indiscipline as defined by the byelaws of the Association or of any other conduct unbecoming of a member of the Association.
- (e) On the member becoming office **Bearer** of a political party.

## 7. General Body of Association:

The General Body of the Association shall be constituted by all the Primary Members of the Association.

# 8. Office Bearers:

The General Body of the Association shall elect in the prescribed manner following office bearers:

### (i) President:

A person who has been a Primary Member of the Association continuously for the last two years or more may be elected as the President.

### (ii) Vice Presidents (up to three):

A person who **has been** a Primary Member of the Association continuously for the last two years or more may be elected as Vice President.

### (iii) Secretary:

A person who has been a Primary Member of the Association continuously for the last two years or more may be elected as Secretary.

## (iv) Treasurer:

A person who has been a Primary Member of the Association continuously for the last two years or more may be elected as Treasurer. Provided that the qualification of two years of membership required for all the posts/offices above shall not apply for the first two years to a newly formed association and in case of an association which has existed more than two years before its affiliation to the Parishad the period of membership before the affiliation of the association to the Parishad shall also be counted for the purpose of qualification.

# (v) Organizing Secretary:

A member of the Association may be appointed by the Prantiya Executive Committee of the Parishad to act as Organizing Secretary of the Association. Such person shall be a member of the Executive Committee of the Association and shall continue in that capacity till being removed / replaced by the Prantiya Executive committee or till the expiry of the term of the Executive Committee of the Association, whichever happen earlier.

# 9. Executive Body of the Association:

The Executive Body of the Association shall be constituted of the following:

- (i) President
- (ii) Vice Presidents
- (iii) Secretary
- (iv) Treasurer
- (vi) Prescribed number of Members co-opted in the prescribed manner.
- (vii) Organizing Secretary
- (viii) All such members of the Association who are part of the Prant and District bodies of the Parishad.

## 10. Functions, Duties, Tenure and Removal of Office Bearers etc.:

Functions and duties of various Office Bearers shall be as stated in the byelaws and as prescribed by the Sub-Rules.

- (i) Tenure of all the Office Bearers shall be Two years. If an Office falls vacant during the term, it shall be filled in by nomination by the Executive Committee of the Association for the remaining period of the term.
- (ii) Vacating Office by Office Bearers:

An Office shall be deemed to have been vacated by an Office Bearer in the following contingencies:

On the acceptance of Office Bearer's resignation in writing by the Executive Committee.

On removal of the Office Bearer from office for proved misconduct after enquiry conducted in the prescribed manner.

On the Office Bearer ceasing to be a member of the Association.

#### 11. Sub-Rules:

The General Body shall have the power to make Sub-Rules for the purpose of effective implementation of the byelaws and for the purpose of achieving the aims and objects of the Association.

### 12. Quorum for Meetings:

For the meetings of various bodies of the Association quorum requirement shall be as follows:

# (i) General Body of the Association:

Quorum for a meeting of the General Body of the Association shall be one third of the total number of Primary Members of the Association. If the required numbers of members are not present at the commencement of the meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned for half an hour. The adjourned meeting may commence thereafter without requirement of the quorum to transact the business on the agenda provided that at least ten members are present.

# (ii) Executive Committee of the Association:

Quorum for the meeting of Executive Committee of the Association shall be fifty percent of its members.

## (iii) Other Committees and Bodies:

Quorum for the meetings of other bodies shall be Fifty percent of the strength of the committee or body.

Note: In determination of the quorum requirement fraction of a number shall be rounded off to the next higher number.

# 13. General Provisions regarding meetings of the Association:

- (i) Meetings of Members of the Association shall be convened by the Secretary in consultation with the President of the Association as and when necessary, but it shall meet at least once in a month. One of these meetings will be Annual General Meeting at which following businesses will be transacted:
  - a) To receive the Annual Report of the Association.

- b) To approve the Annual Accounts for the preceding year.
- c) To approve Annual Budget for the current / next year.
- d) To elect the Office Bearers, if due.
- e) To appoint the Auditors and fix their remuneration.
- (ii) A meeting of the General Body shall be called by the Secretary if not less than 1/3rd of the total number of voters entitled to vote at a General Body meeting submit a requisition in writing in the prescribed manner demanding calling of such a meeting. Such a meeting shall be called a requisitioned meeting at which the sole agenda shall be the agenda mentioned in the Notice of requisition. A Requisitioned Meeting shall be called, giving 15 days' notice, within one month of receiving the Notice of Requisition from the members.
- (iii) Meetings of the Executive Committee shall be convened by the Secretary in consultation with the President of the Association normally by giving 7 days notice along with the Agenda.

# 14. Decisions by majority:

Decisions in all the meetings, unless specifically provided otherwise, shall be by a majority of voters present and voting and in case of equality of number of votes the person presiding over the meeting shall have a casting vote.

### 15. Official and Financial Year:

The Official and Financial Year of the Association shall be from 1st April to 31st March of the next year and the accounts shall be kept accordingly.

## 16. Bank Accounts of the Association:

The Executive Committee of the Association shall open Bank Account/s in any of the branches of a Scheduled Bank and make arrangements for operation of such accounts by its Office Bearers in the prescribed manner.

#### 17. Annual Accounts and Audit:

The Treasurer of the Association shall, under the overall direction, control and supervision of the Executive Committee, maintain in the prescribed manner, proper and regular accounts of its income and expenditure and shall get them audited by a Chartered Accountant every year. The audited accounts shall be presented to the Annual General Meeting of the Association every year for approval.

#### 18. Closure of Association:

In the event that the Association is closed for whatsoever reason, the office bearers shall ensure that the banking account cooperating in the name of Association is closed and the funds standing credit to the account is transferred to the account of Bharat Vikas Parishad as "Donation" without any recourse.

# 19. Amendment of the byelaws:

A meeting of the General Body of the Association specially called for the purpose may by a resolution brought and passed in the prescribed manner amend any of the provisions of these byelaws by a majority of the total number of members entitled to vote and  $2/3^{\rm rd}$  of the members present and voting after getting prior approval from the Parishad.